## IRETURN BIDS TO: RETOURNER LES SOUMISSIONS A :

Bid Receiving/Réception des sousmissions Procurement and Contracting Services c/o Commissionaires, F Division 6101 Dewdney Ave Regina, SK S4P 3K7

# REQUEST FOR PROPOSAL

# DEMANDE DE PROPOSITION

Proposal to: Royal Canadian Mounted Police

We hereby offer to sell to Her Majesty the Queen in right of Canada, in accordance with the terms and conditions set out herein, referred to herein or attached hereto, the goods, services, and construction listed herein and on any attached sheets at the price(s) set out therefor.

Proposition aux : Gendarmerie royale du Canada

Nous offrons par la présente de vendre à Sa Majesté la Reine du chef du Canada, aux conditions énoncées ou incluses par référence dans la présente et aux appendices ci-jointes, les biens, services et construction énumérés ici sur toute feuille ci-annexée, au(x) prix indiqué(s).

Comments: - Commentaries:

THIS DOCUMENT DOES NOT CONTAIN A SECURITY REQUIREMENT

LE PRÉSENT DOCUMENT NE COMPORTE PAS UNE EXIGENCE EN MATIÈRE DE SÉCURITÉ

**Title - Sujet:** Recreational Vehicle/Toy Date Hauler 5th Wheel Trailer, Estevan, SK December 3, 2018 Solicitation No. - Nº de l'invitation M5000-19-3717/A - PW-18-00853888 Client Reference No. - No. De Référence du Client 201903717 Solicitation Closes - L'invitation prend fin CST (Central Standard Time) At /à: 2:00 pm HNC (Heure Normale du Centre) On / le: January 18, 2019 **Delivery - Livraison** Taxes - Taxes **Duty - Droits** See herein — Voir aux See herein — Voir See herein — Voir aux présentes aux présentes présentes Destination of Goods and Services - Destinations des biens et services See herein — Voir aux présentes Instructions See herein — Voir aux présentes Address Inquiries to -Adresser toute demande de renseignements à **Tania Sentes** Telephone No. - No. de téléphone Facsimile No. - No. de télécopieur 639-625-3463 306-780-5232

Delivery Required – Livraison exigée See herein — Voir aux présentes	Delivery Offered – Livraison proposée			
Vender/Firm Name Address and Penresentative - Paison sociale				

Vendor/Firm Name, Address and Representative – Raison sociale, adresse et représentant du fournisseur/de l'entrepreneur:

Telephone No. – No. de téléphone

Name and title of person authorized to sign on behalf of Vendor/Firm (type or print) – Nom et titre de la personne autorisée à signer au nom du fournisseur/de l'entrepreneur (taper ou écrire en caractères d'imprimerie)

Signature

Date



#### **TABLE OF CONTENTS**

#### **PART 1 - GENERAL INFORMATION**

- 1.1. Security Requirement
- 1.2. Requirement
- 1.3. Debriefings
- 1.4. Recourse Mechanisms
- 1.5. Trade Agreements

## **PART 2 - BIDDER INSTRUCTIONS**

- 2.1. Standard Instructions, Clauses and Conditions
- 2.2. Submission of Bids
- 2.3. Enquiries Bid Solicitation
- 2.4. Applicable Laws
- 2.5. Promotion of Direct Deposit Initiative
- 2.6. Improvement of Requirement During Solicitation Period

## **PART 3 - BID PREPARATION INSTRUCTIONS**

3.1. Bid Preparation Instructions

#### PART 4 - EVALUATION PROCEDURES AND BASIS OF SELECTION

- 4.1. Evaluation Procedures
- 4.2. Basis of Selection

#### PART 5 - CERTIFICATIONS AND ADDITONAL INFORMATION

5.1. Certifications Precedent to Contract Award and Additional Information

#### **PART 6 - RESULTING CONTRACT CLAUSES**

- 6.1. Security Requirement
- 6.2. Requirement
- 6.3. Standard Clauses and Conditions
- 6.4. Term of Contract
- 6.5. Authorities
- 6.6. Payment
- 6.7. Invoicing Instructions
- 6.8. Certifications and Additional Information
- 6.9. Applicable Laws
- 6.10. Priority of Documents
- 6.11. Procurement Ombudsman
- 6.12. Shipping Instructions Delivered Duty Paid
- 6.13. Delivery and Unloading
- 6.14. SACC Manual Clauses
- 6.15. Environmental Considerations

#### **List of Annexes**:

Annex A Requirement
Annex B Basis of Payment

Annex C Mandatory Technical Criteria

## **PART 1 - GENERAL INFORMATION**

## 1.1 Security Requirements

There is no security requirement associated with the requirement.

## 1.2 Requirement

The requirement is detailed under Annex "A" of the resulting contract clauses.

## 1.3 Debriefings

Bidders may request a debriefing on the results of the bid solicitation process. Bidders should make the request to the Contracting Authority within 15 working days from receipt of the results of the bid solicitation process. The debriefing may be in writing, by telephone or in person.

#### 1.4. Recourse Mechanisms

If you have any concerns relating to the procurement process, please refer to the <u>Recourse Mechanisms</u> page on the Buyandsell.gc.ca website. Please note that there are strict deadlines for filing complaints with the Canadian International Trade Tribunal (CITT) or the Office of the Procurement Ombudsman (OPO).

https://buyandsell.gc.ca/for-businesses/selling-to-the-government-of-canada/recourse-mechanisms

## 1.5 Trade Agreements

"The requirement is subject to the provisions of the North American Free Trade Agreement (NAFTA) and the Canadian Free Trade Agreement (CFTA)."

#### **PART 2 - BIDDER INSTRUCTIONS**

### 2.1 Standard Instructions, Clauses and Conditions

All instructions, clauses and conditions identified in the bid solicitation by number, date and title are set out in the <u>Standard Acquisition Clauses and Conditions Manual</u> (https://buyandsell.gc.ca/policy-and-guidelines/standard-acquisition-clauses-and-conditions-manual) issued by Public Works and Government Services Canada.

Revision to Departmental Name: As this solicitation is issued by Royal Canadian Mounted Police (RCMP), any reference to Public Works and Government Services Canada or PWGSC or its Minister contained in any term, condition or clause of this solicitation, including any individual SACC clauses incorporated by reference, will be interpreted as reference to RCMP or its Minister.

Bidders who submit a bid agree to be bound by the instructions, clauses and conditions of the bid solicitation and accept the clauses and conditions of the resulting contract.

The 2003 (2018-05-22) Standard Instructions - Goods or Services - Competitive Requirements, are incorporated by reference into and form part of the bid solicitation.

Subsection 5.4 of 2003, Standard Instructions - Goods or Services - Competitive Requirements, is amended as follows:

Delete: 60 days Insert: 90 days

#### 2.2 Submission of Bids

Bids must be submitted only to RCMP Bid Receiving Unit by the date, time and place indicated on page 1 of the bid solicitation.

NOTE: The RCMP has not been approved for bid submission by epost Connect service.

Due to the nature of the bid solicitation, bids transmitted by facsimile or email to RCMP will not be accepted.

#### 2.3 Enquiries - Bid Solicitation

All enquiries must be submitted in writing to the Contracting Authority no later than seven (7) calendar days before the bid closing date. Enquiries received after that time may not be answered.

Bidders should reference as accurately as possible the numbered item of the bid solicitation to which the enquiry relates. Care should be taken by bidders to explain each question in sufficient detail in order to enable Canada to provide an accurate answer. Technical enquiries that are of a proprietary nature must be clearly marked "proprietary" at each relevant item. Items identified as "proprietary" will be treated as such except where Canada determines that the enquiry is not of a proprietary nature. Canada may edit the question(s) or may request that the Bidder do so, so that the proprietary nature of the question(s) is eliminated, and the enquiry can be answered to all bidders. Enquiries not submitted in a form that can be distributed to all bidders may not be answered by Canada.

## 2.4 Applicable Laws

Any resulting contract must be interpreted and governed, and the relations between the parties determined, by the laws in force in Saskatchewan.

Bidders may, at their discretion, substitute the applicable laws of a Canadian province or territory of their choice without affecting the validity of their bid, by deleting the name of the Canadian province or territory specified and inserting the name of the Canadian province or territory of their choice. If no change is made, it acknowledges that the applicable laws specified are acceptable to the bidders.

## 2.5 Promotion of Direct Deposit Initiative

The following information is not related to the solicitation process:

An initiative within the Government of Canada called the Cheque Standardization Project has been established whereby eventually for all payments, cheque stubs will no longer be printed and, with few exceptions, will be processed via direct deposit. This option is only available when payment is made in Canadian dollars for deposit into a Canadian bank account. In an attempt to be proactive, RCMP Corporate Accounting is promoting the registration of RCMP suppliers for the upcoming change in the payment process.

If you are the successful bidder on this or any other RCMP requirement, you are encouraged to register with the RCMP for direct deposit. Please contact RCMP Corporate Accounting by email to receive a form entitled *Recipient Electronic Payment Registration Request* along with instructions for completion of the form.

Should you have any questions regarding the Cheque Standardization Project or if you want to register, please contact the following email: <a href="mailto:corporate-accounting@rcmp-grc.gc.ca">corporate-accounting@rcmp-grc.gc.ca</a>

## 2.6 Improvement of Requirement During Solicitation Period

Should bidders consider that the specifications or Statement of Work contained in the bid solicitation could be improved technically or technologically, bidders are invited to make suggestions, in writing, to the Contracting Authority named in the bid solicitation. Bidders must clearly outline the suggested improvement as well as the reason for the suggestion. Suggestions that do not restrict the level of competition nor favour a particular bidder will be given consideration provided they are submitted to the Contracting Authority at least seven (7) days before the bid closing date. Canada will have the right to accept or reject any or all suggestions.



**PART 3 - BID PREPARATION INSTRUCTIONS** 

#### 3.1 Bid Preparation Instructions

Canada requests that the Bidder submits its bid in separately bound sections as follows:

Section II: Technical Bid (one hard copy)
Section III: Financial Bid (one hard copy)
Certifications (one hard copy)

Prices must appear in the financial bid only. No prices must be indicated in any other section of the bid.

Canada requests that bidders follow the format instructions described below in the preparation of their hard copy bid:

- (a) use 8.5 x 11 inch (216 mm x 279 mm) paper;
- (b) use a numbering system that corresponds to the bid solicitation.

In April 2006, Canada issued a policy directing federal departments and agencies to take the necessary steps to incorporate environmental considerations into the procurement process <a href="Policy on Green">Policy on Green</a>
<a href="Procurement">Procurement</a> (https://www.tbs-sct.gc.ca/pol/doc-eng.aspx?id=32573). To assist Canada in reaching its objectives, bidders should:

- 1) use 8.5 x 11 inch (216 mm x 279 mm) paper containing fibre certified as originating from a sustainably-managed forest and containing minimum 30% recycled content; and
- 2) use an environmentally-preferable format including black and white printing instead of colour printing, printing double sided/duplex, using staples or clips instead of cerlox, duotangs or binders.

#### Section I: Technical Bid

In their technical bid, bidders should explain and demonstrate how they propose to meet the requirements and how they will carry out the Work.

## Section II: Financial Bid

Bidders must submit their financial bid in accordance with the Basis of Payment.

## 3.1.1 Exchange Rate Fluctuation

C3011T (2013-11-06), Exchange Rate Fluctuation

#### Section III: Certifications

Bidders must submit the certifications and additional information required under Part 5.

## PART 4 - EVALUATION PROCEDURES AND BASIS OF SELECTION

## 4.1 Evaluation Procedures

- (a) Bids will be assessed in accordance with the entire requirement of the bid solicitation including the technical and financial evaluation criteria.
- (b) An evaluation team composed of representatives of Canada will evaluate the bids.

## 4.1.1 Technical Evaluation

## 4.1.1.1 Mandatory Technical Criteria

Refer to Annex C, Mandatory Technical Criteria

## 4.1.2 Financial Evaluation

The price of the bid will be evaluated in Canadian dollars, Applicable Taxes excluded, Incoterms 2010 Delivered Duty Paid (DDP) including unloading, Canadian customs duties and excise taxes included.

#### 4.2 Basis of Selection

A bid must comply with the requirements of the bid solicitation and meet all mandatory technical evaluation criteria to be declared responsive. The responsive bid with the lowest evaluated price will be recommended for award of a contract.

#### **PART 5 - CERTIFICATIONS**

Bidders must provide the required certifications and additional information to be awarded a contract.

The certifications provided by Bidders to Canada are subject to verification by Canada at all times. Unless specified otherwise, Canada will declare a bid non-responsive, or will declare a contractor in default if any certification made by the Bidder is found to be untrue whether made knowingly or unknowingly, during the bid evaluation period or during the contract period.

The Contracting Authority will have the right to ask for additional information to verify the Bidder's certifications. Failure to comply and to cooperate with any request or requirement imposed by the Contracting Authority may render the bid non-responsive or constitute a default under the Contract.

#### 5.1 Certifications Precedent to Contract Award and Additional Information

The certifications and additional information listed below should be submitted with the bid but may be submitted afterwards. If any of these required certifications or additional information is not completed and submitted as requested, the Contracting Authority will inform the Bidder of a time frame within which to provide the information. Failure to provide the certifications or the additional information listed below within the time frame specified will render the bid non-responsive.

## 5.1.1 Integrity Provisions

In accordance with the section titled Information to be provided when bidding, contracting or entering into a real property agreement subject to the <u>Ineligibility and Suspension Policy</u> (<a href="https://www.tpsgc-pwgsc.gc.ca/ci-if/politique-policy-eng.html">https://www.tpsgc-pwgsc.gc.ca/ci-if/politique-policy-eng.html</a>), the Bidder must provide the required documentation, as applicable, to be given further consideration in the procurement process:

- Declaration of Convicted Offences Integrity Declaration Form (as applicable)
- Required Documentation (List of names for integrity verification form)

Please see the <u>Forms for the Integrity Regime</u> website for further details (<u>http://www.tpsgc-pwgsc.gc.ca/ci-if/formulaires-forms-eng.html</u>).

## 5.1.2 Federal Contractors Program for Employment Equity - Bid Certification

By submitting a bid, the Bidder certifies that the Bidder, and any of the Bidder's members if the Bidder is a Joint Venture, is not named on the Federal Contractors Program (FCP) for employment equity "FCP Limited Eligibility to Bid" list available at the bottom of the page of the <a href="Employment and Social">Employment and Social</a> <a href="Development Canada (ESDC)">Development Canada (ESDC)</a> — <a href="Labour's">Labour's</a> website (https://www.canada.ca/en/employment-social-development/programs/employment-equity/federal-contractor-program.html#).

Canada will have the right to declare a bid non-responsive if the Bidder, or any member of the Bidder if the Bidder is a Joint Venture, appears on the "FCP Limited Eligibility to Bid" list at the time of contract award.

## **PART 6 - RESULTING CONTRACT CLAUSES**

The following clauses and conditions apply to and form part of any contract resulting from the bid solicitation.

## 6.1 Security Requirements

**6.1.1** There is no security requirement applicable to the Contract.

## 6.2 Requirement

The Contractor must provide the items detailed under the "Requirement" at Annex "A".

#### 6.3 Standard Clauses and Conditions

All clauses and conditions identified in the Contract by number, date and title are set out in the <u>Standard Acquisition Clauses and Conditions Manual</u> (https://buyandsell.gc.ca/policy-and-guidelines/standard-acquisition-clauses-and-conditions-manual) issued by Public Works and Government Services Canada.

Revision to Departmental Name: As this contract is issued by Royal Canadian Mounted Police (RCMP), any reference to Public Works and Government Services Canada or PWGSC or its Minister contained in any term, condition or clause of this contract, including any individual SACC clauses incorporated by reference, will be interpreted as reference to RCMP or its Minister.

#### 6.3.1 General Conditions

2010A (2018-06-21), General Conditions - Goods (Medium Complexity), apply to and form part of the Contract.

#### 6.4 Term of Contract

## 6.4.1 Delivery Date

While delivery is requested to be within eight (8) weeks from award of contract, the best delivery that could be offered is \_\_\_\_\_\_, but no later than **March 31, 2019.** 

## 6.4.2 Delivery Points

Delivery of the requirement will be made to delivery point(s) specified on page one of the Contract.



#### 6.5 Authorities

## 6.5.1 Contracting Authority

The Contracting Authority for the Contract is:

Tania Sentes Senior Contracting Authority Royal Canadian Mounted Police Corporate Management Branch

Telephone: 639-625-3463 Facsimile: 306-780-5232

E-mail address: tania.sentes@rcmp-grc.gc.ca

The Contracting Authority is responsible for the management of the Contract and any changes to the Contract must be authorized in writing by the Contracting Authority. The Contractor must not perform work in excess of or outside the scope of the Contract based on verbal or written requests or instructions from anybody other than the Contracting Authority.

## 6.5.2 Project Authority

Title: \_\_\_\_\_ Organization: \_\_\_\_

Nama:

Address:	
Telephone : Facsimile:	
E-mail address:	
carried out unde	nority is the representative of the department or agency for whom the Work is being r the Contract and is responsible for all matters concerning the technical content of the Contract. Technical matters may be discussed with the Project Authority, however the
<b>Project Authority</b>	has no authority to authorize changes to the scope of the Work. Changes to the scope only be made through a contract amendment issued by the Contracting Authority.

## **6.5.3 Contractor's Representative** To be completed at contract award

The Project Authority for the Contract is: To be completed at contract award

Name	
Title:	_
Organization:	
Address:	
Telephone :	
Facsimile:	
E-mail address:	

## 6.6 Payment

### 6.6.1 Basis of Payment

In consideration of the Contractor satisfactorily completing all of its obligations under the Contract, the Contractor will be paid a firm unit price, as specified in Annex B, Basis of Payment for a cost of \$\_\_\_\_\_ (to be completed at contract award). Customs duties are included and Goods and Services Tax or Harmonized Sales Tax is extra, if applicable.

Canada will not pay the Contractor for any design changes, modifications or interpretations of the Work, unless they have been approved, in writing, by the Contracting Authority before their incorporation into the Work.

## 6.6.2 Single Payment

SACC Manual clause H1000C (2008-05-12) Single Payment

## 6.7 Invoicing Instructions

The Contractor must submit invoices in accordance with the section entitled "Invoice Submission" of the general conditions. Invoices cannot be submitted until all work identified in the invoice is completed.

Invoices must be distributed as follows:

The original must be forwarded to the address shown on page 1 of the Contract for certification and payment.

## 6.8 Certifications and Additional Information

#### 6.8.1 Compliance

Unless specified otherwise, the continuous compliance with the certifications provided by the Contractor in its bid or precedent to contract award, and the ongoing cooperation in providing additional information are conditions of the Contract and failure to comply will constitute the Contractor in default. Certifications are subject to verification by Canada during the entire period of the Contract.

#### 6.9 Applicable Laws

The Contract must be interpreted and governed, and the relations between the parties determined, by the laws in force in Saskatchewan.



### 6.10 Priority of Documents

If there is a discrepancy between the wording of any documents that appear on the list, the wording of the document that first appears on the list has priority over the wording of any document that subsequently appears on the list.

- (a) the Articles of Agreement;
- (b) the general conditions 2010A (2018-06-21), Goods (Medium Complexity;
- (c) Annex A, Requirement;
- (d) Annex B, Basis of Payment;
- (e) the Contractor's bid dated \_\_\_\_\_

#### 6.11. Procurement Ombudsman

## 6.11.1 Dispute Resolution Services

The parties understand that the Procurement Ombudsman appointed pursuant to Subsection 22.1(1) of the *Department of Public Works and Government Services Act* will, on request, and consent of the parties, to participate in an alternative dispute resolution process to resolve any dispute between the parties respecting the interpretation or application of a term or condition of this contract and their consent to bear the cost of such process, provide to the parties a proposal for an alternative dispute resolution process to resolve their dispute.

The Office of the Procurement Ombudsman may be contacted by telephone at 1-866-734-5169 or by email at <a href="mailto:boa-opo@boa-opo.gc.ca">boa-opo.gc.ca</a>.

#### **6.11.2 Contract Administration**

The parties understand that the Procurement Ombudsman appointed pursuant to Subsection 22.1(1) of the Department of Public Works and Government Services Act will review a complaint filed by [the supplier or the contractor or the name of the entity awarded this contract] respecting administration of this contract if the requirements of Subsection 22.2(1) of the Department of Public Works and Government Services Act and Sections 15 and 16 of the Procurement Ombudsman Regulations have been met, and the interpretation and application of the terms and conditions and the scope of the work of this contract are not in dispute.

The Office of the Procurement Ombudsman may be contacted by telephone at 1-866-734-5169 or by e-mail at <a href="mailto:boa-opo@boa-opo.gc.ca">boa-opo@boa-opo.gc.ca</a>.

## 6.12 Shipping Instructions – Delivered Duty Paid

Goods must be consigned and delivered to the destination specified in the contract:

Incoterms 2010 "DDP Delivered Duty Paid", to Estevan, Saskatchewan including all unloading charges.

The Contractor will coordinate delivery of the unit with the Project Authority. A minimum of 48 hours' notice must be provided prior to delivery.



## 6.13 Delivery and Unloading

Delivery trucks must be equipped with an unloading device which will permit unloading at sites with no hydraulic, stationary or other type of unloading facility.

When making deliveries, sufficient personnel must be provided to permit unloading of any type of vehicle without the assistance of federal government personnel

#### 6.14 SACC Manual Clauses

B7500C (2006-06-16) Excess Goods G1005C (2016-01-28) Insurance – No Specific Requirement

#### 6.15 Environmental Considerations:

Where applicable, suppliers are encouraged to consider the following environment considerations:

## Deliverables:

- When printed material is requested, the minimum recycled content of 30% is required and/or certified as originating from a sustainably managed forest.
- Recycle unneeded printed documents (in accordance with Security Requirements).

#### Shipping Requirements:

- Minimize packaging
- > Include recycled content in packaging;
- Re-use packaging;
- Include a provision for a take-back program for packaging;
- Reduce/eliminate toxics in packaging.

#### **ANNEX "A"**

#### REQUIREMENT

The Contractor must supply, deliver, unload and provide service, as required, for one (1) new (2018 Model or Manufacturer Model Year at bid closing) Recreational Vehicle (RV) Toy Hauler 5<sup>th</sup> Wheel Trailer to the Royal Canadian Mounted Police, to be delivered to Estevan, SK, in accordance with the requirements specifications, terms and conditions detailed herein.

## The RV Toy Hauler 5th Wheel Trailer must include the following specifications:

## 1. Chassis, Frame and Dimensions

- a) 80" Interior Height Minimum
- b) 90" Interior Width Minimum
- c) 13' garage or cargo area Minimum
- d) Dual axles heavy duty

## 2. Brakes and Tires

- a) 4 Wheel Braking System
- b) Tires manufacturer's standard load range

## 3. Lighting

a) Exterior Flood Lighting in garage loading and trailer entry areas - Minimum

### 4. Exterior and Electric

- a) Fresh Water Fill
- b) Tank Monitor (including, Water Tanks and Battery Condition Minimum)
- c) Medium to large capacity exterior access storage Minimum
- d) Fiberglass sidewalls
- e) Diamond plate rock guard on front
- f) 30 Amp electrical service Minimum
- g) Rear Ramp Door with assist mechanism
- h) Anti-slip covering for ramp door when open
- i) Rear ramp door lockable latch mechanism
- j) R7 Insulated Walls, Ceiling and Floor Minimum
- k) Vapor Barrier Underbelly
- I) Spare Tire with carrier
- m) Frameless windows with safety glass- Minimum
- n) Rear and front stabilizer jacks with levelling function Minimum
- o) 30 Gallon Fuel Station Minimum
- p) Two (2) 26 Litre Propane Gas Bottles Minimum
- q) RV Generator 5500 Watt Minimum
- r) Outside access to fresh water (shower or spray) Manufacturer's standard
- s) Awning Manufacturer's standard

## 5. Interior, Heating and Storage

- a) Forced Air Furnace and Air Conditioner for garage/cargo and living areas (13,500 BTU Minimum)
- b) 6 Gallon Gas/Electric Water Heater Minimum
- c) 80 Gallon Fresh water holding tank Minimum
- d) 40 Gallon Black Water Tank Minimum
- e) 80 Gallon Grey Water Tank Minimum
- f) Enclosed heated tanks (above)



- g) Bathroom to include toilet, shower, sink, power vent, and cabinets/storage Minimum
  - h) 6 Cu. Ft. Gas/Electric Auto Switching Fridge Minimum
  - i) 2 Burner Range w/ Oven and Hood Minimum
  - j) Microwave Oven
  - k) Entertainment center Manufacturer's standard
  - I) Dining area for capacity of 4 to 6 people
  - m) Sleep Accommodations for 6 people (including cargo area) Minimum; Manufacturer's Standard
  - n) Kitchen sink and storage
  - o) Roof Vent in living area and garage/cargo area
  - p) Equipment Storage Cabinets in garage/cargo area
  - q) Tie down mechanism in floor of garage/cargo area to support minimum 3000 lbs.
  - r) Garage/Cargo floor strong/re-enforced to support equipment and fluid spills.

## 6. Safety and Security

- a) Fire Extinguisher Manufacturer's Standard
- b) Trailer/tow vehicle disconnect Safety system Manufacturer's Standard
- c) Carbon Monoxide Detector
- d) Smoke Detector
- e) Liquefied Petroleum Gas (LPG) Leak Detector
- f) Battery Cut-off Switch
- g) Emergency Fuel Shutoff
- h) Entry Door Locks

## 7. Instrumentation and Other

- a) Pre-Delivery Inspection (PDI) Included
- b) Manuals: Must include 1 English copy of Operators, Service and Parts Manuals in any media form
- c) Colours: Manufacturer's Standard
- d) Warranty: Copy of warranty to be received with delivery. All costs related to warranty work must be included in price, non-warranty maintenance and after sales service are to be charged separately.
- e) Service: Ability to conduct general and warranty service within 500 km from delivery location. The repairs are to be performed by an authorized representative. Repairs service is to begin within 24 hours of notification at a service facility. The authorized representative to have ready access to regular maintenance and service parts and be able to access all parts not normally stocked from an authorized parts dealer within 72 hours.
- f) Keys: Two (2) Sets of Keys Minimum

#### ANNEX "B"

## **BASIS OF PAYMENT**

Firm unit prices, in Canadian dollars, the Goods and Services Tax or the Harmonized Sales Tax is extra, Incoterms 2010 "DDP Delivered Duty Paid", delivery, unloading charges, Canadian customs duties and excise taxes included.

Annex "B" must be completed in its entirety or the bid will be considered non-responsive and will not be evaluated.

<b>Description</b> a) One (1) RV Toy Hauler 5 <sup>th</sup>	Quantity	Unit of Issue	Price per Unit	
Wheel Trailer, in accordance with Annex A to be shipped to Estevan, Saskatchewan	1	Each	\$	
Manufacturer:				
Model:				
Year:				

## ANNEX "C"

#### **MANDATORY TECHNICAL CRITERIA**

Bidders are required to indicate whether or not they comply with the mandatory specifications. Bidders must include one (1) copy of descriptive literature of the make and model of the items offered in sufficient detail to clearly indicate compliance with each of the individual requirements in the specifications and cross reference where this specification is located within the descriptive literature.

Where weight, dimensions or other characteristics are shown as minimum or maximum, the bidder must indicate the manufacturer's figures.

The Royal Canadian Mounted Police is under no obligation to seek clarification of the bid(s) or the supporting technical documentation provided.

Failure to meet any of the following specifications will render your proposal non-compliant and will be given no further consideration.

## BIDDER MUST SUBMIT WITH THEIR BID PROOF OF BEING AN AUTHORIZED MANUFACTURER OR RESELLER FOR THE UNIT OFFERED PRIOR TO AWARD OF CONTRACT.

### The following specifications must be met:

No.	Specification	Compliance		Comment(s) / Cross
		Yes	No	Reference
A1.	Guaranteed delivery prior to March 31, 2019			
A2.	New 2018 Model or Manufacturer Model Year at bid closing			
1.	Chassis, Frame and Dimensions			
a)	80" Interior Height – Minimum			
b)	90" Interior Width – Minimum			
c)	13' garage or cargo area – Minimum			
d)	Dual axles – heavy duty			
2.	Brakes and Tires			
a)	4 Wheel Braking System			
b)	Tires – manufacturer's standard load range			
3.	Lighting			
a)	Exterior Flood Lighting in garage loading and trailer entry areas – Minimum			
4.	Exterior and Electric			
a)	Fresh water fill			
b)	Tank Monitor (including. Water Tanks and Battery Condition – Minimum)			

c)	Medium to large capacity exterior access storage – Minimum	
d)	Fiberglass sidewalls	
e)	Diamond plate rock guard on front	
f)	30 Amp electrical service - Minimum	
g)	Rear Ramp Door with assist mechanism	
h)	Anti-slip covering for ramp door when open	
i)	Rear ramp door lockable latch mechanism	
j)	R7 Insulated Walls, Ceiling and Floor - Minimum	
k)	Vapor Barrier Underbelly	
I)	Spare Tire with carrier	
m)	Frameless windows with safety glass- Minimum	
n)	Rear and front stabilizer jacks with levelling function - Minimum	
0)	30 Gallon Fuel Station – Minimum	
p)	Two (2) 26 Litre Propane Gas Bottles – Minimum	
q)	RV Generator – 5500 Watt – Minimum	
r)	Outside access to fresh water (shower or spray) – Manufacturer's standard	
s)	Awning – Manufacturer's standard	
5.	Interior, Heating and Storage	
a)	Forced Air Furnace and Air Conditioner for garage/cargo and living areas (13,500 BTU – Minimum)	
b)	6 Gallon Gas/Electric Water Heater – Minimum	
c)	80 Gallon Fresh water holding tank - Minimum	
d)	40 Gallon Black Water Tank – Minimum	
e)	80 Gallon Grey Water Tank – Minimum	
f)	Enclosed heated tanks (above)	
g)	Bathroom – to include toilet, shower, sink, power vent, and cabinets/storage - Minimum	
h)	6 Cu. Ft. Gas/Electric Auto Switching Fridge – Minimum	
i)	2 Burner Range w/ Oven and Hood – Minimum	
j)	Microwave Oven	
k)	Entertainment center – Manufacturer's standard	
I)	Dining area for capacity of 4 to 6 people	
m)	Sleep Accommodations for 6 people (including cargo area) – Minimum; Manufacturer's Standard	
n)	Kitchen sink and storage	
o)	Roof Vent in living area and garage/cargo area	
p)	Equipment Storage Cabinets in garage/cargo area	
q)	Tie down mechanism in floor of garage/cargo area to support minimum 3000 lbs.	
r)	Garage/Cargo floor strong/re-enforced to support equipment and fluid spills.	



6.	Safety and Security	
a)	Fire Extinguisher – Manufacturer's Standard	
b)	Trailer/tow vehicle disconnect Safety system – Manufacturer's Standard	
c)	Carbon Monoxide Detector	
d)	Smoke Detector	
e)	Liquefied Petroleum Gas (LPG) Leak Detector	
f)	Battery Cut-off Switch	
g)	Emergency Fuel Shutoff	
h)	Entry Door Locks	
7.	Instrumentation and Other	
e)	Service: Service/warranty and regular maintenance work to be performed within a <b>500 km radius</b> of the final destination, by an authorized service dealer and/or agent. The repairs service is to begin within 24 hours of notification at a service facility.  The authorized representative to have ready access to regular maintenance and service parts and be able to access all parts not normally stocked from an authorized parts dealer within 72 hours.  The Bidder must provide the name, address, telephone number and indicate the distance between the delivery location and the authorized service dealer and/or agent to provide after sales service, maintenance, warranty repairs, and a full range of repair parts for the unit offered.	Distance between the delivery location and the service dealer and/or agent:km  Name:  Address:  Telephone: